
Procurement Board  
 

Dear Member, 
 

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Procurement Board to be held as follows 
for the transaction of the business indicated. 
Tom Stannard 

Chief Executive  

 
DATE: Wednesday, 8 December 2021 

 
TIME:  10.00 am 

 
VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton 

 
In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 

this meeting.  
 

AGENDA 

 
1   Apologies for absence  

 

 

2   Declarations of interest  

 

 

3   To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held 
on 24th November 2021  

 

(Pages 1 - 6) 

4   Matters arising  

 

 

5   Decision items - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

5a Request for Permission to Participate in the GM Collaborative 
Contract for the Provision of Temporary Workers - Frank O'Sullivan  
 

(Pages 7 - 14) 

5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - 
Framework for Demolition and Associated Services - Jonathan 

Phillips / Tracy Squirrel  
 

(Pages 15 - 22) 

5c Request for Approval - Oldfield Road Corridor Scheme - Anene 

Chiegboka  
 

(Pages 23 - 32) 

5d Request for Approval - Contract Award - Semi and Independent Living 
Services in Salford - Jennifer Walsh  
 

(Pages 33 - 46) 

6   Any other business - Part 1 (open to the public)  

 

 

7   Exclusion of the public  

 

 

8   Decision items - Part 2 (closed to the public)   

Public Document Pack



 

 
8a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Domestic Abuse - Debbie 

Blackburn / Madha Ayub  
 

(Pages 47 - 50) 

9   Date and time of next meeting  

 

12 noon on Tuesday 14th December in the Salford Suite, Civic Centre, 

Chorley Road, Swinton, M27 5DA. 
 
Please note that this is instead of the meeting previously scheduled 

for 10:00 on Wednesday 22nd December. 
 

 

 
Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3316 
Carol Eddleston, Senior Democratic Services 

Advisor 

E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk 



Procurement Board meeting held in the Civic Centre, Chorley Road, 

Swinton, M27 5DA 

24th November 2021 

Meeting commenced at 10:00am 

Meeting ended at 11:18am 

Present in Person 
Councillors Bill Hinds (in the chair), Merry and Youd. 

In Attendance in Person 
Carol Eddleston Democratic Services 

In Attendance via MS Teams 

Muna Abdel Aziz Director of Public Health 

Helen Dugdale  Public Health Strategy Manager 

Sandra Derbyshire VCSE Commissioning Manager 

Lee Evans  Senior Project Manager Infrastructure 

Terry Dixie  Head of Service for Transportation 

Chris Hesketh  Head of Financial Management 

Anthony Hilton  Head of Strategic Procurement 

Janice Lowndes  Assistant Director People & Communities 

Shoaib Mohammad Assistant Director Technical Services 

Rob Owen  Head of Highways and Network Management 

Dave Robinson  Head of Service Streetscene and Parks 

Dan Sterry  Group Leader Landscape Architecture & Urban Design 

Rob Turner  Regulatory Services Manager 

 

1. Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillor Kelly. 

2. Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. Minutes of Proceedings 

The minutes of the meeting held on 24th November were approved as a correct record. 

4. Matters Arising 

There were no matters arising. 

5. Decision Items – Part 1 – Open to the Public 

5(a) Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Contract Award – Greater 

Manchester Sexual Health Improvement Programme 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Public Health requesting an exception to 

Contractual Standing Orders to approve the award of a contract for the Greater Manchester Sexual 

Health Improvement Programme.  

Since 2016 the programme had been commissioned across GM under one partnership programme, 

with Salford being the lead commissioner. The programme was multi-faceted and included HIV and 

sexually transmitted infection (STI) prevention for GM residents and support for people living with 

HIV (PLW HIV), both newly diagnosed and as a long-term condition. 

The different contributions from the GM authorities reflected the levels of service additionality that 

each authority received rather than population size or the number of individuals who accessed the 
programme. 

The programme was delivered by three VCSE providers, two of which were already accredited living 

wage employers. The third provider was working towards accreditation and was committed to 
signing up to the City Mayor’s employment standards charter.  

RESOLVED, THAT: 

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved as there were no other providers 

available to allow genuine competition, and 

(2) A 24 months’ contract for the Greater Manchester Sexual Health Improvement Programme 

be awarded to lead Provider BHA with a per annum estimated value of £138,000 for Salford  
City Council (Total GM Local Authority budget £900,981 per annum). 

5(b) Request for Approval – Exception to Contractual Standing Orders – Contract Award 

– Strategic Development of the VCSE Sector through Engagement, Support and 

Influence and Promoting Volunteering in Salford 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Directors People and Place seeking an exception 

to Contractual Standing Orders to award a contract for strategic development of the VCSE sector 
through engagement, support, influence and promoting volunteering in Salford. 

A light touch review had been undertaken on the current contracts with SCVS that delivered 

strategic development, infrastructure and training and development for local VCSE organisations and 

volunteering. The review concluded that a potential change of provider through competitive 

tendering or insourcing would be likely to have a negative impact on the efficiency of the delivery of 

the integration, capacity building and support of the local VCSE sector that was currently provided. 

The current provider overachieved in the delivery of all outcomes and KPIs as set in the service 

specification and maintaining the current contract funding levels would help to ensure 

organisational and sector viability, which was critical at a time that the Council continued to face 

financial challenges and make savings. The VCSE sector played an essential role supporting residents 
and played an important part in the local economy and COVID19 response.  

Members of the Board were supportive of the proposals and commended the work of Salford 

Community and Voluntary Sector (SCVS) and were reassures that the contract would be reviewed 

annually based on performance and budget.  

RESOLVED, THAT: 

(1) An exception to Contractual Standing Orders be approved for reasons of best value and a 

lack of other providers available to allow genuine competition, and 

Page 2



(2) A 36 months’ contract, plus an optional extension period of 24 months, for the strategic 

development of the VCSE sector through engagement, support and infl uence and promoting 

volunteering in Salford be awarded to Salford Community and Voluntary Sector (SCVS) with 
a value of £265,568 per annum. 

5(c) Request for Approval – Contract Extension – Appointment of a Project and 

Programme Manager – Grant Funded Infrastructure Projects 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking a further extension of a 

contract for project and programme management support in connection with the City Council’s 
workload of grant funded infrastructure projects.  

The extension was being requested due to insufficient resource within both the Regeneration and 

Technical Services teams. Recruitment to this and others positions within these teams was an 

ongoing challenge due to the city council’s terms and conditions not being competitive with those 
offered by other local authorities in the North West and the private sector.  

The contractor was an accredited living wage employer and was committed to signing up to the City 

Mayor’s employment standards charter. 

RESOLVED, THAT: an 11 months’ extension to the contract with AECOM for the appointment of a 
Project and Programme Manager be approved at a per annum estimated average cost of £80,000. 

5(d) Request for Approval – Contract Extension – Supply of Liquid Fuels 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval for an extension 

for the contract for the supply of liquid fuels as provided for in the original contract which 
commenced in January 2020. 

There had been no indication of costs rising when speaking with Standard Fuels. It had been pointed 

out that the Government classification changes with regards to use of red diesel would result in 

significant rise in costs from 1st April 2022 although exact details were unknown at present. This 

would have a small impact on budget during the winter period 2022 as this type of fuel was used in 

gritter vehicles which were normally only used during the winter months. There would be no impact 

during the requested extension period but there may be implications the next optional extension 
period from January 2023. 

The contractor had recently confirmed that it would seek living wage accreditation status. 

RESOLVED, THAT: a 12 months’ extension to the contract with Standard Fuel for the supply of liquid 

fuels be approved at an estimated cost of £1,000,000. 

5(e) Request for Approval – Contract Award – Greater Manchester Clean Air Zone 

Street Lighting Column Replacements 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 
contract for Greater Manchester Clean Air Zone street lighting column replacements.  

The Clean Air Plan was approved at the Cabinet on 27th July 2021 and the Clean Air Zone would 

include all of the roads within Greater Manchester, with the exception of the motorway network. 

Drivers would be informed of the operation and extents of the zone by highways signage. The 

scheme would be enforced with the use of more than 800 Automatic Number Plate Recognition 

Page 3



(ANPR) cameras installed across the network in Greater Manchester. As a result, 72 lighting columns 

scattered across Salford needed to be replaced with uprated columns to enable the installation of 

the electrical equipment, brackets and ANPR cameras. 7 separate standalone posts would be 

installed by the ANPR camera contractor to complete the programme of ANPR cameras across the 
City.  

The successful bidder had indicated that they would be happy to sign up to the Mayor’s employment 

standards charter. 

RESOLVED, THAT: A seven months’ contract for GM Clean Air Zone street lighting column 
replacement be awarded to Altitude Services Ltd at a full project cost of £216,496.19.  

5(f) Request for Approval t o go out to Competition for the Supply of Compostable Liners  

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking authority to procure the 
supply of compostable liners in accordance with the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders. 

The use of compostable liners had a positive effect encouraging residents in engaging with recycling. 

Each year the Council currently distributed over 10 million compostable liners to Salford residents, 

enabling over 20,000 tonnes of food and garden waste to be recycled each year which equated to 

over 23% of all waste arisings. If caddy liners were not provided to residents, there was a strong risk 

that the recycling rates across the City would reduce significantly and contamination levels would 

increase as the use of inappropriate bags would increase, and in turn increasing disposal costs (5% 

reduction in recycling can result in increased disposal costs of £400,000 p.a. based upon 2021/2022 
waste levy costs). 

RESOLVED, THAT: authority be granted for the supply of compostable liners to be procured in 

accordance with the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders through an existing external framework. 

5(g) Request for Approval to go out to Competition for the Salford Handyperson Service  

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking authority for the Salford 

Handyperson Service to be procured in accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules 
through an open tender. 

The service was delivered by an independent operator and provided small scale housing repairs to 

vulnerable and elderly homeowners across the City. A recent online consultation exercise had shown 

that there was strong support for the current service delivery model and eligibility criteria. Results 

from the consultation also suggested strong support for the current priority work the service 

offered. A number of suggestions were made for additional work items and where appropriate these 

would be incorporated into the revised tender specification. 

Insourcing of the service had been considered was not currently considered viable and in the 

interests of local people owing to the absence of appropriate infrastructure within the City Council 

to deliver this service. The existing service model offered high social value through local employment 

and offering a real living wage and these matters would be included in the tender specification. 

RESOLVED, THAT: The Salford Handyperson Service be procured in accordance with the Council’s 
Contract Procedure Rules through an open tender. 

Page 4



6. Exclusion of the Public 

RESOLVED: THAT, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded 

from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involved the likely 

disclosure of exempt information as specified in paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 

 

7. Decision Item – Part 2 – Closed to the Public 

Consideration was given to a report of the Strategic Director Place seeking approval to award the 

contract for the Islington Park Improvement Scheme. The item had been deferred at the meeting on 

10th November to allow more detailed information about the tender evaluation and Social Value to 

be collated. 

The report sought approval to award a contract to implement phase 3 of the City Centre Bee 

Network (Islington Park) which was integral to the wider Salford City Centre Bee routes being 

proposed. The improvement works would transform Islington Park into a vibrant and engaging green 

space that both developed and enhanced active travel and connectivity, whilst also creating a focal 
point for the community. 

It was confirmed that the successful bidder would be encouraged to seek living wage accreditation.  

RESOLVED, THAT: subject to  

a) Delivery funding being secured through the Department for Transport’s (DfT) Active Travel 

Fund tranche 3 (AFT3 award), and  

b) Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) approval of a full business case and the 

signing of a delivery agreement for the Islington Park Improvement Scheme, the contract for 

the Islington Park Improvement Scheme (City Centre Bee Network – Islington Park), with a 

full project value of £552,269.68, be awarded to Horticon Limited. 

 

 

 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 1 

Part 1: Open to the Public – Item No. 

 

REPORT OF ASSISTANT DIRECTOR HR & OD 

 

TO PROCUREMENT BOARD 

 

ON 8 DECEMBER 2021

 

TITLE: Approval to participate in the Greater Manchester Collaborative Contract for 

the Provision of Temporary Workers 

 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS: That Procurement Board approve Salford City Council’s 

participation in the Greater Manchester Collaborative Contract for the Provision of 
Temporary Workers 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  

The purpose of this report is to seek approval to participate in the Greater Manchester 
Collaborative Contract for the Provision of Temporary Workers - via the use of a 

beneficiary agreement with Trafford Council who are the contracting authority with the 
provider. 

 
 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  

 

 

KEY DECISION: Yes - value of spend is in excess of £350k 

 

 

DETAILS: 

 
The Council takes a number of strategic and operational workforce planning 

approaches to maintain appropriate staffing levels and ensure the right people with the 
right skills, knowledge and behaviours are in place at the right time to meet the short 
and long-term needs for effective service delivery.  

 
However, a number of external and internal factors, many of which can be 

unpredictable, unplanned or immediate in need can affect staffing levels requiring a 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5a



 2 

more immediate or temporary solution that typical resourcing routes may not be 
suitable to offer.   
 

Over a number of years, the Council has worked collaboratively with other regional 
local authorities and organisations to develop an approach to engaging temporary 

workers to reduce costs and risks for the organisation when it comes to maintaining 
the right employee levels for effective service delivery. 
 

The first collaborative approach was established amongst the then core Greater 
Manchester Authorities (excluding Manchester CC) in 2008 and the latest contract 

collaboration will be the 4th generation of such arrangements. 
 
Throughout this time Salford has continued to be part of the collaborative 

arrangements with the current Greater Manchester Collaborative Contract in place 
since 2016 - via the use of a beneficiary agreement with Trafford Council who are the 

contracting authority with the provider.  
 
Salford City Council is not committed to any level of spend via this arrangement and it 

is a compliant and cost-effective route to procure agency workers as and when 
required. 

 
In Salford the contract is used predominantly for the supply of temporary Social 
Workers within the People Directorate and Drivers and Loaders within the Place 

Directorate. Regular benchmarking is also undertaken in relation to the engagement 
of agency workers across children’s social care which is in one of the largest demand 
areas. This benchmarking data has demonstrated that Salford spend in this area is the 

lowest across Greater Manchester; however, work is ongoing with the service to 
reduce this even further.  

 
The collaboration allows a managed service provision across the organisations which 
supports the following requirements: 

 To operate in strategic partnership with the collaboration and, where 
appropriate/necessary, offer guidance on workforce planning, fulfilment 
methods and process governance. 

 Operationally advise on agency worker needs, engagement and rates. 

 Additional support in terms of advertising/marketing campaigns for hard to 

fill/niche roles along with direct contact with agencies to discuss the role 
requirements. 

 Agency worker ordering including technical support. 

 Supply chain management (including due diligence, compliance, eligibility to 

work, DBS and auditing). 

 Vacancy filling including support through the process. 

 Timesheets and payment. 

 Invoicing. 

 Issue resolution. 

 Monitoring and reporting. 

The current contract is with Reed Talent Solutions which has largely been successful, 
although there are still challenges within specific occupational groups where there is 

Page 8



 3 

high demand and a lack of suitably skilled candidates for example, qualified social 
workers. 
 

As the current collaborative contract comes to an end on the 28 January 2022 Star 
Procurement, on behalf of Trafford Council, have led the tender process for the delivery 

of a managed service for the provision of temporary workers.  
 
The procurement route has been via an existing, dedicated procurement framework 

administered by YPO (Yorkshire Procurement Organisation). This framework allows 
for flexible managed service solutions and has an optimum number of capable 

providers. The mini competition allowed providers, by responding to the quality 
assessment questions and pricing evaluation, to offer proposals for bespoke, 
innovative and flexible solutions to the collaboration’s strategic and operational needs.  

 
By being awarded the right to supply through the YPO Framework, Trafford Council 

was satisfied that tenderers will have already satisfied core operational and 
technological criteria. 
 

As a result of this tendering exercise the contract was awarded to Reed Talent 
Solutions. 

 
The contract with Trafford Council will commence on 29 January 2022 until 28 January 
2025 with one annual renewal allowed potentially extending the contract to January 

2026.  
 
All Greater Manchester authorities are committed to the next collaboration via the use 

of a beneficiary agreement with Trafford Council along with Blackpool Council, 
Blackburn with Darwen Council, Greater Manchester Police and Warrington Council. 

As the benefits of a single collaborative approach include: 

 A consistent, collaborative approach across GM and other participating 

partners. 

 An efficient and effective platform for temporary staffing supply.  

 A central control of the supply base including rates (supply chain and pay rates). 

 Reduction to the costs of the process for acquisition of temporary workers. 

 Efficiencies of resources when jointly procuring the service. 

 A lower risk exposure for organisations when there is a need to engage agency 
workers. 

 Overarching single governance, compliance, performance management and 
supplier auditing approach. 

 Local and collaborative management information, business intelligence and 
insights in relation to the engagement of agency workers. 

 A central issue resolution and points of escalation. 

 Consolidated and streamlined invoicing. 

 Opportunities for harmonisation of approaches, processes, and terms and 

conditions. 
 

The total anticipated yearly spend through the contract across all participating 
authorities is projected to be £55m (£3m for Salford City Council) however, the counci l 

is not committed to any level of spend via this arrangement. 
 

Page 9



 4 

Whilst there are risks when appointing any incumbent supplier, Reed have clearly 
listened to feedback and shown a clear commitment to further improving the service 
with innovative approaches to tackling supply issues. 
 

In addition, as an incumbent supplier there is no implementation period/fee or increase 
in fees from the current contract – the supplier is already well established with the 
collaboration and are providing a quality and competitive service, therefore a transition 

period or change in process is not required.  
 

Reed’s policies and social value commitments clearly show work undertaken with the 
voluntary and community sector and submitted a comprehensive response showing a 
clear commitment to the Greater Manchester region, including a review of social aims 

and goals which have been undertaken with specific targets and measures put in place. 
Some highlights: 

 Maintain 97% percentage of local employees (FTE) employed to work on the 
contract. 

 Increase the team by 4 GM residents in the first year of the contract. 

 Working with partner organisations to attract a total of 10 care leavers, NEETS, 
Young Offenders and disabled people to full time positions for at least a year. 

 1,200 hours of support into work provided to unemployed people. 

 300 hours of support to local schools and colleagues. 

 4 members of staff gaining an NVQ as part of their apprenticeship scheme. 

 2,400 hours dedicated to support young people into work. 

 2 x six-week work placements per year.  

 300 hours of expert business advice to VCSEs and MSMEs. 

 No more than 3% of spend goes through organisations outside of the GM area. 

 £600 repeat donation to support care leavers at Christmas. 

 30 hours of expert advice for SMEs and VCSEs to respond to the COVID-19 
crisis. 

 160 hours of staff time volunteering within their community. 

 100% ethical procurement.  
 

We will actively engage with Reed’s Social Value lead to maximise these Greater 
Manchester commitments for Salford and push the accounts management team to 

meet and exceed their social value commitments creating contractual targets 
specifically for Salford that are meaningful and deliver for the people of Salford. 
 

In addition the beneficiaries across GM are establishing a Social Value Committee for 
the contract, which will include stakeholders from the collaborating authorities. The 

Committee will meet on a monthly basis to monitor progress against our Social Value 
Charter and respective TOMs (Themes, Outcomes Measures) and identify areas for 
development. 

 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 

 

Page 10



 5 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: Arrangements for 

engagement of agency workers follow the same as the current collaboration; therefore, 
there no negative impact to equality considerations. 

 

 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: If the recommendation is not approved, then there is a 

substantial risk of the Council being charged higher rates for agency workers, and that 
we would not meet the shared standards in compliance/ safeguarding/ insurance etc. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services, or the 
execution of works, the Council must comply with the Public Contracts Regulations 
2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s), failing which a contract 

may be subject to legal challenge from an aggrieved provider. The proposed award of 
the contract follows a tender exercise by mini competition undertaken by STaR 

procurement (on behalf of Trafford BC) calling off the YPO framework on behalf of the 
other public bodies set out in the report which are parties to the collaboration 
agreement for the provision of temporary workers. CSO’s stipulate that where a 

suitable framework exists, this must be used unless there is an auditable reason not 
to do so. 

 
The Council can comply with the requirements of PCR by carrying out its own 
procurement exercise or relying upon another contracting authority's compliant 

procurement exercise. In that regard, contracting authorities may procure goods, works 
or services through a ‘central purchasing body’ (and are deemed to have complied with 
PCR to the extent that the central purchasing body has). The definition of ‘central 

purchasing body’ includes an authority that concludes framework agreements for 
works, goods or services intended for one or more contracting authorities, here STaR 

(on behalf of Trafford BC). The YPO arrangement is a fully compliant framework from 
a legislative perspective available for the Council (and other local authorities) to use. 
 

The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 

as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through a number of ways 

e.g. mini-competition or direct award, depending on the circumstances. A contract will 
then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. The Council is not 

committed to any level of spend via this arrangement; it is a compliant and cost-
effective route to procure agency workers as and when required. 
 

STaR will need to have followed the procedure set out in the framework agreement to 
ensure the procurement process is compliant. Submissions were evaluated on the 

most economically advantageous tender basis in line with published procurement 
procedures resulting in the proposed award of the contract to Reed Limited. The 
procurement procedures therefore appear robust and compliant with the requirements 

of the Council’s CSO’s and public procurement legislation. 

 

Page 11



 6 

 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Hutchings, Strategic Finance 
Manager  

As identified within the report, Reed are the incumbent supplier with an estimated 
contract value for SCC of £3m per annum.  There is no minimum level of spend set out 
within the contract, expenditure is only incurred after utilising the service and fees are 

in line with the current contract.  All expenditure will be funded from the relevant 
service’s revenue budget and with existing financial protocols and controls in place, 

relevant authorisation is required on a case by case basis to utilise the contract. 

 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Emma Heyes, Category Manager 

 

STaR procurement undertook the tendering of this contract on behalf of all participants.  
This was facilitated through a mini-competition from the YPO framework, which is fully 
complaint with Procurement Regs.   

 
A robust evaluation was carried out following the published award criteria, and Reed 

were selected as the bidder that submitted the most economically advantageous 
tender. 
 

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Frank O’Sullivan, Strategic HR & OD Manager  

The council needs a compliant, timely and cost-effective solution to procure agency 
workers as and when required.  

 
There is a risk by not entering into the collaborative arrangements of being charged 

higher rates for agency workers, and that we would not meet the shared standards in 
compliance/ safeguarding/ insurance etc.  
 

The collaborative approach achieves efficiencies of resources when jointly procuring 
the service and overall contract management that would need to be met locally that 

would likely have a notable impact on service delivery. It is also unlikely that a local 
and smaller directly procured contract would achieve the economies of scale or value 
for money the collective approach achieves. 

 

 
 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  

 

No climate change implications have been identified at this point. 
 

Page 12



 7 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

 

 

CONTACT OFFICER: Frank O’Sullivan, Strategic HR & OD Manager TEL NO: 

07824730917  

 

 
 

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: N/A 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Exception to CSO’S 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for Place Directorate 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
8th December 2021  

 

TITLE:   

Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to award an extension of the framework 

agreement for Demolition and Associated Services, for a further 6 months or until a 
new framework is in place. 

RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approves an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders as 
permitted within the City Council Constitution for the reason(s) highlighted in the table 

below and the award of an extension of the framework agreement for Demolition and 
Associated Services for a further 6 months or until a new framework is in place. 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project Framework for Demolition and Associated Services 

Name of Successful Contractor  Name of 
Contractor 
 

Registration 
No 

SME/Non 
SME 

Connell 
Brothers Ltd 

2475702 SME 

P McGuiness & 
Co  

00880391 SME 

Rhodar,(Bagnall 
UK ) 

04223987 Non SME 

Oldham 
Brothers 

1676314 SME 

P P O’Connor 2545561 SME 

Alan Franklin 4804728 SME 
 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Provided above 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5b



Exception to CSO’S 

Detail required Answers 
Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Private Limited Company 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value (£) £253,000.00 

Contract Duration  6 months 

Contract Start Date  15/11/2021 

Contract End Date  16/04/2022 

Optional Extension Period 1 N/A 

Optional Extension Period 2 N/A 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

Choose an item. 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Jonathan Phillips x 4972 

Lead Service Group Place 

Reason for CSO Exception: The goods / 
services / works are only obtainable 
from one provider and there is no other 
provider available to allow genuine 
competition 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: The 
execution of works or the supply of 
goods or services is controlled by a 
statutory body 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Delivers 
Best Value to the Council 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Special 
education, health or social care 
contracts, if it is considered in the 
Council’s best interests and to meet the 
Council’s obligations under relevant 
legislation 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: The 
execution of works or the supply of 
goods and services is required so 
urgently as not to permit compliance 
with the requirements of competition 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: Security 
works where the publication of 
documents or details in the tendering 
process could prejudice the security of 
SCC and Salford residents 

Tick if it applies  

Reason for CSO Exception: 
Procurements made through, or on 
behalf of, any consortium, local 
authority, statutory or similar body, 

Tick if it applies  

Page 16



Exception to CSO’S 

Detail required Answers 
provided that tenders or quotations are 
invited and contracts placed in 
accordance with national or EU 
legislation. 

Funding Source Choose an item. 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

 

 

EC: Committed to sign up to the Charter 
 

 

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer To be included in new framework agreement. Not 
a criteria when existing framework was approved. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is:  

To request an Exception to Contractual Standing Orders to approve the award an 

extension of the Framework Agreement for Demolition and Associated Services, for a 
further 6 months or until a new framework is in place. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 The original report for an award of the Demolition and Associated Services 

Framework, which was submitted for approval on 1st November 2017, outlining the 
procurement process and the details of the tender returns. 

 A report for a 12-month extension award of the framework, which was submitted 
for approval on 30th October 2019.   

 The final year’s extension report and approval to go out to tender for the new 
Demolition and Associated Services Framework, which was approved at 
Procurement Board on the 4th November 2020.  

 

KEY DECISION:  

No  

DETAILS:   

The existing framework which consists of 6 contractors (2 of which are Salford based 

companies, 2 based in Greater Manchester and the remaining 2 located within the 

Page 17



Exception to CSO’S 

North West), was for an initial 2-year period with an option to extend for a further 2-
year period, which came to an end on the 14th November 2021, following the final 

year’s extension.  
 

The existing framework which is accessed by Bury MBC, Tameside Council, Trafford  
Council, Manchester City Council, Stockport Council and Wigan Council, supplies very 
competitive rates, with all project’s delivered efficiently and to programme.  

 
A new Demolition and Associated Services Framework is presently being prepared to 

bring future delivery areas within the city under one framework, with planned 
completion by April 2022.  Unfortunately, this exercise has been delayed due to  officer 
commitments to deliver current refurbishment works programme, which is behind 

schedule, due to suppliers and manufacturing issues, as a result of the Covid-19 
Pandemic.  

 
In the interim period to April 2022, the extension of the existing framework agreement 
is required to ensure continuity in the delivery of capital programme works and 

provision of the Building Control team’s dangerous buildings and out of hours security 
services. 

 
It is intended that the new framework agreement will be for an initial 2-year period, 
with an option to extend for a further 2-year period, subject to annual review from April 

2024 to April 2026. It is estimated that the value of projects that would be tendered 
through the framework within the extension period would not exceed a value of 

£300,000. 
 
Social Value 

 
As part of the operational development of the existing framework agreement, Social 

Value has now been successfully built into the requirements of all mini 
competitions.  This is identifying economic, environmental and social criteria that are 
relevant and proportionate to the subject matter of each contract, and also taking into 

account how contractors will address these criteria as part of the ‘qualitative 
evaluation’.  This would continue for the extension period, if granted, until the new 

Demolition & Associated Services Framework is in place.  
 

 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

Capital Programme Delivery 

 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:-   

N/A

 

Page 18



Exception to CSO’S 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

High - If the framework is not extended for a further 6 months, buildings across the 

city, that are in a dangerous condition and others that are scheduled to be demolished, 
will remain exposed to the risk of anti-social behaviour activities in these areas, 

potentially put the public at risk of harm and have a detrimental effect on local 
residents.  The City Council will need to find an alternative procurement route at short 
notice to carry out works to make safe any dangerous buildings. 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDING: 

The source of funding will vary from scheme to scheme although most will be capital 
funded. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Tony Hatton, Principal Solicitor, Legal 
Services; Tel: 0161 219 6323 

Date: 15/11/2021 

When commissioning contracts for the provision of goods, services or the execution 
of works, the Council must comply with the provisions of the Public Contracts 

Regulations 2015 (PCR) and its own Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) as set out 
in the Constitution, failing which the award of a contract may be subject to legal 

challenge. 

It is an established principle that an existing public contract is capable of being varied 
or modified providing any modification does not affect the overall nature of the 

contract, and an exception to the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders (CSO’s) may 
be approved by the Procurement Board to allow for contract extensions to be made 

where the original contract does not make provision for such an extension of the 
original term. There is, however, always a risk that any extension, if done outside of 
the usual tender process, or outside of the scope of CSO’s, could be subject to 

challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis that it ought to have been put out to 
tender and advertised in accordance with the Public Contract Regulations 2015 (PCR).  

 
The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and proposed length of the 
contract. The extension with the existing providers on the framework with proven ability 

to meet the requirements of the Council would be argued to be more cost effective 
and efficient under the circumstances pending completion of the new framework. 

The maximum term for a framework agreement is a 4-year period, and the terms and 
conditions established under the framework govern the contracts let under it, although 
each contract will inevitably have some differences to reflect the agreement struck 

between the parties to the contract. Ordinarily at the end of the 4-year period, the 
framework must be dissolved and competition for the goods or services re-opened 

and a new framework can then be established where appropriate. This ensures that 
value for money can be periodically tested and open competition maintained. The 
period of the individual contracts established under the framework can be as long or 

Page 19



Exception to CSO’S 

as short as the authority requires and may be entered into at any time during the period 
of the framework arrangement. 

Whilst the value of the extension remains below threshold, there is still a risk of 
challenge to the award of contracts let under the framework as referred to above. In 

the circumstances the risk may be regarded as low. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Alex Archer; Finance Manager, SCC; 

Tel: 0161 778 0498 

Date: 15/11/2021 

There are no direct financial implications to be considered in this report although 
savings achieved through the framework extension should be noted; the financial 
implications of contracts let under this framework will be considered/reported on a 

scheme by scheme basis. 

 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by Deborah Derbyshire, Category 
Manager Level 2, Procurement; Tel: 0161 686 6244 

Date: 15/11/2021 

There is always a risk of challenge from an aggrieved provider due to not going out for 
competition.  The risk is relatively low as the exception for an extension is for a short 

period of 6 months whilst the opportunity is advertised and the tender documents are 
completed, the extension applies to all contractors on the framework to ensure 
continuity of the service. 

The procurement team will work with the project team in undertaking a new 
procurement process to establish a compliant framework. 

 

HR IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: N/A 

 

CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:   

On a project specific basis, the SCC Building Surveyor/Project Manager as the 

contract administrator, works closely with the successful framework contractor for 
each approved scheme, to monitor the contractors use of local labour, sourcing of 
materials from local suppliers to reduce haulage and recycle as many materials as 

possible to reduce landfill.   
 

Suppliers understand the importance of reducing any negative impact on the 
environment due to demolition works and wherever possible utilise their lowest 
emission plant and equipment. 

Page 20



Exception to CSO’S 

Framework suppliers are also committed to achieving, industry best practice and 
currently achieve the demolition industries targets with approximately 98% of 

demolition waste currently being recycled, although their aim on every project they 
undertake is to recycle 100% of demolition waste. 

 
General waste and segregated materials are removed on a daily basis, in designated 
skips, to avoid any build-up of materials on site.  Any crushable waste materials will 

be crushed on site, (if applicable, i.e. depending on size of the project) using a state-
of-the-art hybrid crusher with the aim of re-using the product to level ground surfaces. 

 
A local supplier owns and operates three recycling facilities, where waste materials 
can be segregated and processed into a range of recycled aggregates and products. 

 
Suppliers hold their own waste carrier’s licence and collect/reference the disposal 

notes issued to them for each material removed from site. 

 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A 

 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Jonathan Phillips 

TELEPHONE NUMBER: 07733 322371 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  

All Wards 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



 Oldfield Road Corridor – going out to tender 

Part 1: Open to the public 

 
 

REPORT OF 
 

The Strategic Director for Place 
 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 
 

8 December 2021 
 

 
 
TITLE: Approval to go out to competition for Oldfield Road Corridor scheme 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That the City Mayor:  
 

1. Approve the issue of tenders for site investigations along Oldfield Road, 

Salford to complete the detailed design stage of the project. 

2. Notes and endorses the proposed procurement route for the following 

activities (subject to identifying delivery funding). 

• Approve the issue of tenders via an appropriate framework for 

construction of the proposed Oldfield Road Corridor scheme. 

• Delegates Authority to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with 

the S151 officer to submit the Full Business Case (FBC) to the Greater 

Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) for review. 

• Delegates Authority to the Strategic Director Place in consultation with 

the S151 officer to draft and approve the Grant Funding Agreement 

(GFA) between Salford City Council, Transport for Greater Manchester 

(TfGM) and the GMCA.  

 

 
 
 
 

Page 23

Agenda Item 5c



 Oldfield Road Corridor – going out to tender 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
 
This report provides a scheme update following the successful bid to the Mayors 
Challenge Fund (MCF) gaining programme entry status and seeks further approval for 
the next steps of delivery. The Oldfield Road Corridor scheme gained programme 
entry to the Greater Manchester Mayors Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (MCF) 
in 2019. Once completed, the scheme will form part of the 'Bee Network' for Greater 
Manchester which aims to create the largest joined up system of walking and cycling 
routes in the UK.   

The purpose of this report is to request approval to go out to competition for site 
investigations which will support the next stages of design / development of the 
scheme.  Funding to develop the scheme, including the site investigations has been 
secured through The MCF programme.  

Completion of the design stage of the project will enable SCC to bid for funding to 
deliver the project. It is anticipated that the delivery stage of scheme will be largely 
funded from grant, subject to a successful bid and business case approval.  A 
proportion of Section 106 funding to be secured by the City Council will also be used. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:  
 
Appendix A: Oldfield Road Corridor Scheme Overview Plan 

 
 
KEY DECISION: No 

 
 
1. DETAILS:  
 

1.1. The provision of cycling and walking infrastructure on Oldfield Road will 
support sustainable accessibility from local residential developments to the 
Regional Centre. In addition, it will support significant planned developments 
for the area including Salford Rise, Crescent Masterplan and Middlewood 
Locks, the project proposals aim to provide attractive infrastructure to enable 
walking and cycling to be a natural choice for travel. 

 
1.2. A three-week public consultation was undertaken from 26 October to 16 

November 2020 with an approval rating of 92% of the comments in support of 
the proposed project.  

 
1.3. Scheme development is currently at its detailed design stage. Statutory 

undertakers’ assessment to determine the scheme’s impact on existing buried 
utility services is ongoing. To complete this work intrusive site investigation is 
needed to inform the design approach for highway and landscape works 
proposed for the scheme. The Site Investigation activities required are Trial 
Trenches, CCTV Drainage Surveys and Ground Penetration Radar Survey 
(GPR).   

 

Page 24



 Oldfield Road Corridor – going out to tender 

 
2. Estimated Project Costs 
 

2.1 The estimated cost for the site investigations required is £205,247.68 the Site 
Investigations are crucial to expedite the design. The implication of not 
undertaking these would be that the design development phase of the project 
could not be completed. This would prevent the required Business Case from 
being submitted for approval.  
 

3. Procurement Route 
 

3.1 For the site investigations and main highway works, the Bolton Council 
Highways Framework Contract 2019/2023 is available and recommended. 

 
4. Funding 

 
4.1  In late 2017, the Cycling and Walking Commissioner for Greater Manchester 

Chris Boardman produced the Made to Move action plan to double and then 
double again cycling in Greater Manchester and make walking the natural 
choice for as many short trips as possible. He noted the objective is to ‘build a 
new and high-quality network for cycling and walking that benefits all of our town 
and city centres but that also delivers high quality commuter routes into the heart 
of the regional centre’. This is to be achieved by: 

• New, better, and more innovative design 

• Safer streets and junctions 

• Reclaiming the school run 

• Genuinely joined up public transport 

• Increasing people’s access to bike 

• Culture shift 

• Efficient investment 

4.2 In May 2018, it was announced that between 2018 and 2022, £160m of funding 
will be made available through the Transforming Cities Fund to encourage more 
people to cycle and walk more often in Greater Manchester.  In Spring 2019, 
Oldfield Road Corridor scheme which forms part of the City Centre Salford – 
Active Centres, Corridors and Neighbourhoods’ project, was approved for 
development as part of Tranche 5 and has programme entry status. 

4.3 The development funding secured through MCF covers project design, including 
site investigations. Development costs incurred by SCC are reclaimed from 
TfGM on a quarterly basis via the Grant Claim Process. 
 

4.4 Once the development stage is complete officers will seek delivery funding for 
the project through bids to the MCF programme or other suitable funds, and 
local S106 match funding contributions.  The estimated construction cost is £4.1 
million.  The report also seeks approvals for the next stages of the project such 
as construction works tender via an appropriate framework and delegation for 

Page 25



 Oldfield Road Corridor – going out to tender 

the submission of a business case, subject to identifying suitable development 
funding. 

 
4.5 Drafting of the Business Case process has commenced and will be developed 

in close collaboration with Transport for Greater Manchester (TfGM). 

4.6 The FBC is expected to be submitted to GMCA once a tender process has been 
completed. In advance of the submission, the Oldfield Road Corridor scheme 
FBC will be reviewed by the Strategic Director for Place and Section 151 Officer. 
It is recommended that authority is delegated to the Strategic Director for Place 
in consultation with Section 151 Officer to submit the FBC to GMCA for review. 

4.7 At this time Capital funding for delivery of the project has not yet been allocated 
from the Mayor’s Challenge fund programme. However, using current 
development funding to progress the scheme to deliver a completed design and 
full business case will strengthen the case for a future funding allocation. 

5. Funding Agreement 
 
5.1. As part of the MCF gateway process for Full Business Case, Salford City 

Council must enter into a legally binding Grant Funding Agreement (GFA). This 
forms a financial contract between Salford, TfGM and GMCA.  

5.2. This report seeks delegated authority for the Strategic Director Place in 
consultation with the S151 officer to draft and approve the Grant Funding 
Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, TfGM and the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority.   

6. Programme 
 
6.1. The forecasted key project milestones for the Oldfield Road Corridor scheme 

are detailed in the table below. Construction dates are forecasts and 
dependent on securing funding approval.   

Key Milestones Completion 
(Forecasted) 

Site Investigations Spring 2022 

Detailed Design Spring 2022 

Business Case Approval Summer 2022 

Construction Starts (subject to funding approval) Autumn 2022 

Construction Finishes Spring 2023 

 

 

 

Page 26



 Oldfield Road Corridor – going out to tender 

7. Next Steps 

7.1. That the City Mayor notes the details of this report and endorses the 
procurement routes proposed to carry out site investigations and main highway 
works for the delivery of the scheme. 

7.2. Notes the recommendation to delegate authority to the Strategic Director Place 
in consultation with the S151 officer to submit the Full Business Case (FBC) to 
the Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) for review. 

7.3. Notes the recommendation to delegate authority to the Strategic Director Place 
in consultation with the S151 officer to draft and approve the Grant Funding 
Agreement (GFA) between Salford City Council, Transport for Greater 
Manchester (TfGM) and the GMCA.  

7.4. Notes that the scheme will return to Procurement Board in advance of GMCA 
approval of the Business Case, where a report will be submitted seeking 
approval to award a contract to successful Contractor, subject to GMCA sign 
off for the funding of the scheme. 

 
 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

▪ Salford 2025, a Modern Global City 
▪ Transport in Salford 2025 

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 
The improvements will be of benefit to all but particularly to pedestrians and cyclists. 
It is considered that there are no adverse impacts associated with this project. 

 
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   
 

Low risk: 
 

o Developers can seek to legally challenge the city council to claim back Section 
106 monies if not used on a scheme that mitigates the impacts of that 
development and/or spent in line with the requirements of the Section 106 
agreement.  
 

o The Design team are experienced in the design of schemes of this nature and 
the contractors for highway works have a successful track record of delivering 
schemes on behalf of the City Council. 

 
 
 
 

Page 27



 Oldfield Road Corridor – going out to tender 

SOURCE OF FUNDING:   
 
Most of the funding will be sought from the Mayor Challenge Fund (MCF) and from 
Section 106 match funding which are to be secured by the City Council. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Tony Hatton 219 6323 
 

Subject to funding approvals from TfGM and in accordance with the Full Business 
Case, when commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the Public 
Contracts Regulations 2015 (PCR) as well as the provisions of its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 
value. CSO’s stipulate that where a suitable framework exists, this must be used 
unless there is an auditable reason not to do so. 
 
The purpose of a framework agreement is to select through a procurement/ evaluation 
process a number of providers who can meet the service requirements of the Council, 
as and when those services are required. If they are required then the Council will 
undertake an exercise to call off the services from one or more of the providers who 
have been selected to be on the framework and this may be through any number of 
ways such as mini-competition, or direct allocation, depending on the circumstances. 
A contract will then be formed between the Council and the chosen provider/s. The 
Council will need to follow the procedure set out in the framework agreements to 
ensure the procurement process is compliant and bids are evaluated in accordance 
with published criteria.  
 
The proposed procurement of the works will be by way of a tender exercise in 
accordance with the process set out in the Bolton Council Highways Framework, which 
was procured in accordance with the PCR following an OJEU process, was set up to 
allow the Council, and other contracting authorities, through open competitive process, 
to access an arrangement whereby suppliers can be preselected to supply a defined 
scope of works or services under an agreed set of terms and conditions. The terms 
and conditions established under the framework agreement govern the contracts let 
under the framework although each contract will inevitably have some differences to 
reflect the agreement struck between the parties to the contract. Compliance with the 
processes will ensure that the risk of challenge to the award of a contract is minimal 
and that any challenge, should it materialise, is extremely unlikely to be successful.  

Legal shall be happy to advise on the grant funding agreement between the Council, 
TfGM and GMCA to ensure the Council’s interests are protected. The terms of any 
grant funding agreement will need to be adhered to in the event that there are 
clawback provisions for failure to comply. 

 
The report refers to some match funding for the works coming from s106 funds. The 
expenditure must be in accordance with the terms of the relevant planning 
obligations. Should the Council allocate S106 funding outside of the conditions within 

Page 28



 Oldfield Road Corridor – going out to tender 

the agreements, or outside the timescales, or in breach of applicable Regulations, a 
developer may challenge that decision and claim back contributions. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Natalie Birchall 

The Oldfield Road Corridor scheme gained programme entry to the Greater 
Manchester Mayors Cycling and Walking Challenge Fund (MCF) in 2019.  

Site investigation and development costs have been approved by GMCA and 
recovered via the quarterly grant claim process.   

Following the tender process and subject to FBC approval, delivery of the scheme will 
be funded the Mayor Challenge Fund (MCF), £4.1m and Section 106 match funding, 
£0.461m. 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Deborah Derbyshire x 6244 
 
The procurement route identified in the report is utilising Bolton Council’s Highway 
Framework which is a compliant route to market, therefore this is compliant with the 
Procurement Contract Regulations and the Council’s Contractual Standing Orders. 

 
 
HR IMPLICATIONS:  
 
Not Applicable 

 
 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: Michael Hemingway 
 
Motorised transport is one of the main sources of Carbon Emissions in Salford. As 
noted in the report the Oldfield Road Corridor scheme will form part of the 'Bee 
Network' for Greater Manchester which aims to create the largest joined up system of 
walking and cycling routes in the UK.  The aim being to provide attractive infrastructure 
to enable walking and cycling to be a natural choice of travel a clear benefit in our 
attempts to mitigate climate change. 

 
 
OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

Environment 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER:  

Anene Chiegboka, Project Manager

 
 

Page 29



 Oldfield Road Corridor – going out to tender 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
Ordsall 

 

Page 30



KEY

Proposed Footway

Proposed Carriageway Proposed Rain Garden

Proposed Tree

Proposed Bench

Proposed Cycle Stand

Proposed Tactile Paving - Buff

Proposed Corduroy Paving - Buff

Proposed Cycle Route

Proposed Tactile Paving -Red

Proposed Paving

Proposed Paving Bands

Proposed Dry Planting Beds

Proposed Ornamental Grasses

Proposed Meadow Turf

October 2020MCF Oldfield Road Corridor

1. Chapel Street to Upper Wharf Street

1 2 3

2. CYCLOPS Junction 3. Junction to Regent Retail Park

Oldfield Road

Oldfield Road
Oldfield Road

Oldfield Road

D
uncan S

treet

Oldfield Road

O
ld

fie
ld

 R
oa

d

C
anal S

treet

H
ope S

treet

C
ow

 Lane

Oldfield Road

Oldfield Road

Oldfield Road

R
egent R

oad

M
id

dl
ew

oo
d 

   
  S

tr
ee

t

M
id

dl
ew

oo
d 

S
tr

ee
t

Liverpool S
treet

Liverpool S
treet

U
pper W

harf S
treet

U
pper W

harf S
treet

H
ulm

e S
treet

H
ulm

e S
treet

Jam
es S

treet

Jam
es S

treet

C
hapel Street

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 Part 1: Open to the public 
 

 
REPORT OF 

 
The Strategic Director for People 

 

TO 
 

Procurement Board 
 

ON 

 
8th December 2021 

 

 
  

TITLE:   Approval to Award the Contracts for Semi and Independent Living Services 
for 16 – 25 year olds  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  

That Procurement Board approve the award of the Contract for Semi and 
Independent Living Services for 16 – 25 year olds as detailed in the table below: 
 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project 

Lot 1 – Minimum 16 units of accommodation and 
support services for young people aged 16 – 24 who 
are at risk of homelessness and/or care leavers with 
medium to high support needs 

 

Name of Successful Contractor  Adullam Homes Housing Association  

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 20853R 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Registered Charity 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) SME 

Contract Value (£) £126,259 per annum 

Contract Duration  5 years (60 months) 

Contract Start Date  01/04/2022 

  

Contract End Date  31/03/2027 

Page 33

Agenda Item 5d



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Optional Extension Period 1 12 months 

Optional Extension Period 2 12 months 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

Procurement Board (extension > £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Jennifer Walsh 0161 778 0533 

Lead Service Group 

 
People Services 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Open tender 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

N/A  

Funding Source Revenue Budget 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter x 

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer x 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 

Service/Supply/Project 

Lot 2 – Minimum 35 units of accommodation and 
support services for young people aged 16 – 25 who 
are at risk of homelessness and/or care leavers with 
low - medium support needs 

 

Name of Successful Contractor   

 Places for People Living Plus Ltd 

 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
20014R 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Registered Charity 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME 

Contract Value (£) £61, 348 per annum  

Contract Duration  5 years (60 months) 

Contract Start Date  01/04/2022 

Contract End Date  31/03/2027 

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months 

Optional Extension Period 2 12 months 

Page 34



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Who will approve each Extension 

Period? 
Procurement Board (extension > £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Jennifer Walsh 0161 778 0533 

Lead Service Group 

 
People Services 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Open Tender  

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

N/A  

Funding Source Revenue Budget 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter X 

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer x 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project 

Lot 3 – Minimum 4 units of accommodation for 
intensive support linked to core Salford Service 
Route 29  

 

Name of Successful Contractor    

Places for People Living Plus Ltd 

 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
20014R 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Registered Charity 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME 

Contract Value (£) £71,666per annum   

Contract Duration  5 years (60 months) 

Contract Start Date  01/04/2022 

Contract End Date  31/03/2027 

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months 

Optional Extension Period 2 12 months 

Who will approve each Extension 

Period? 
Procurement Board (extension > £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Jennifer Walsh 0161 778 0533 

Page 35



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
Lead Service Group 

 
People Services 

How the contract was procured? 

(to be supplied by procurement) 
Open tender  

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 
reference & title, start/ end date 

N/A  

Funding Source Revenue Budget 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter x 

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer x 

 

Detail required Answers 

Title/Description of Contracted 
Service/Supply/Project 

Lot 4 - Min 4 bed provision for young people aged 16 
– 24 who are at risk of being a homeless family (Must 
be pregnant or have children in your care) 

 

Name of Successful Contractor   

Places for People Living Plus Ltd 

 

Supplier Registration Number 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
20014R 

Type of organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) 
Registered Charity 

Status of Organisation 

(to be supplied by Corporate Procurement) Non-SME 

Contract Value (£) £47,970per annum 

Contract Duration  5 years (60 months) 

Contract Start Date  01/04/2022 

Contract End Date  31/03/2027 

Optional Extension Period 1 12 months 

Optional Extension Period 2 12 months 

Who will approve each Extension 
Period? 

Procurement Board (extension > £150k) 

Contact Officer (Name & number) Jennifer Walsh 0161 778 0533 

Lead Service Group 

 
People Services 

How the contract was procured? Open tender 

Page 36



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Detail required Answers 
(to be supplied by procurement) 

Framework Details (where applicable) 

(procurement body, framework 

reference & title, start/ end date 

N/A  

Funding Source Revenue Budget 

Ethical Contractor (EC): Mayor’s 
Employment Charter 

  

  

EC: Committed to sign up to charter x 

EC: Accredited Living Wage Employer x 

 
LOT 5 – Not awarded (Details in report)  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the award of the above mentioned 

contracts 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 Procurement Board meeting minutes 9th June 2021 – Agreement to go out to 
open competition  

 Procurement Report: Request for approval to go out to competition for Semi 
and Independent Accommodation Services for young people aged 16 – 24 
presented 9th June 2021  

 SAILS Review 2021 – Commissioned Semi and Independent Living Services 
in Salford  

 Joint housing protocol between Salford Children Services and Salford 
Housing Option Group for 16/17 year old homeless young people  

 Children Act 1989 Guidance and Regulations (Volume 3: planning transition 
for care leavers, January 2015) 

 Bond Programme Route 29  

 

 
 
KEY DECISION:   

Yes  
 
 

DETAILS:  
 

This is the first time Salford Children Services have gone out to full open tender for 
this suite of services. Whilst the services have been operational in Salford for many 
years, LOTS 1 – 4 were previously commissioned by the Supporting People agenda 

and framework prior to being disbanded. LOT 5 was a historic long term 
arrangement and a 3 way contract with Great Places; Salford Council & Foundations 

from its inception.  

Page 37



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Due to the lack of previous tender experience for childrens commissioners in this 
range of services a provider engagement event was held on 16 th July 2021. The 

reason for this engagement event was to try and gauge the market to analyse the 
number of potential providers who could deliver the services, as well as sharing the 

vision for these services in Salford.  

This was a virtual event where 72 individuals from 59 organisations attended. 

Due to the numbers attending the event and high number of expressions of interest it 

was decided to do a 3 stage award process and included a formal presentation for 
the top scoring providers for each of the 5 lots.  

It was agreed that the pricing structure would be capped and that anyone bidding 
over the budget would be excluded from the process. It was also decided that the 
weighting for price should be minimal at 5% as it was felt that many providers would 

automatically bid in at the top of the budget and would not leave much room for 
differentiation.  

A group of 4 young people from the youth service were given role descriptions and 
basic training on the commissioning process. The group of 4 young commissioners 
took part in several sessions to coproduce questions on what they felt was important 

to assess as part of the quality evaluation. Due to expecting there would be many 
submissions it was decided the young people would not take part in the evaluation of 

the written tenders. The tender evaluations fell at a time when many of the young 
commissioners were transitioning from school to college and college to university. As 
this is a critical time in a young person life, we did not want to overwhelm them with 

additional responsibilities.  

The young people did however, set the presentation agenda and took part in the 

panel with an equal voice with professionals when it came to scoring for LOT 5.  

On the 19th August 2021 the tender for Semi & Independent Living Services for 16 – 
25 year olds was advertised via The Chest procurement portal for Open Competition 

with a closing date of 22nd September 2021. The incumbent provider informed 
Salford on 20th September that they would be unable to bid given the current 

costings on the contract as they would not be able to sustain the service in years 4 & 
5. This raised concern for Commissioners because as the incumbent provider they 
know exactly how the service operates and the costings attached to this and it raised 

concerns of anyone being able to bid in on the current budget. To avoid having zero 
submissions the incumbent provider were advised to bid in with the costings that 

they feel they would need to run the service appropriately. The deadline for the 
tender was extended due to this for a week until 29th September.  

Initially there were 91 expressions of interest for this tender. There were 7 on time 

bids submitted. 10 providers opted out and 74 had no further response when 
requested.  

Out of the 7 on time tenders, 4 met the criteria for the ITT stage and moved onto the 
assessment process.  

The service groups who were involved on the scoring panel for written submission 

and presentations were from Next Steps; Route 29; Placement Finding & 
Commissioning.  

 

Page 38



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 

LOT 1  

Name of Bidder 

Price 

score 

Max 5% 

Quality 

score 

Max 80% 

Social value 

score  

Max 15%  

Overall 

Score 

Max 
100% 

Adullam Housing 

Association 
5% 66% 13.5% 84.5% 

 

The Lead Commissioner is recommending that the contract for LOT 1 be 

awarded to Adullam Housing Association as they have scored highest on quality; 
cost and are the most economically advantageous provider.  

 

LOT 2 

Name of Bidder 

Price 
score 

Max 5% 

Quality 
score 

Max 65% 

Social value 
score  

Max 15%  

Overall 
Score 

Max 

100% 

Places for People 
Living Plus  

5% 71% 13.5% 89.5% 

 

 

LOT 3 

Name of Bidder 

Price 
score 

Max 5% 

Quality 
score 

Max 65% 

Social value 
score  

Max 15%  

Overall 
Score 

Max 
100% 

Places for People 
Living Plus  

5% 71% 13.5% 89.5% 

 

LOT 4 

Name of Bidder 

Price 
score 

Max 5% 

Quality 
score 

Max 65% 

Social value 
score  

Max 15%  

Overall 
Score 

Max 

100% 

Places for People 
Living Plus  

5% 71% 13.5% 89.5% 

 

Page 39



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

The Lead Commissioner are recommending that the contract for LOT 2,3,4 be 
awarded to Places for People Living Plus as they have scored highest on quality; 

cost and are the most economically advantageous provider.  

 

LOT 5 

Name of Bidder 

Price 

score 

Max 5% 

Quality 

score 

Max 65% 

Social value 

score  

Max 15%  

Overall 

Score 

Max 100% 

Provider A     4.36% 60% 13.5% 77.86% 

Provider B  5% 61% 8.94% 74.94% 

 

Commissioning are recommending that none of the providers above are awarded the 
contract and that a further process takes place to ensure transparency and fairness 

in the procurement process based on the learning from the recent process.  

An extension of up to 12 months is being requested to enable further work to review 
the finances and go back out to tender to ensure all possible providers have a fair 

and equal opportunity to bid in for this tender. 

Provider A, who overall scored highest on the tender, are requesting on average 

£577,351 per year which is £66,772 above the budget set out in the tender. (The 
submission of this costing was approved for the reason set out earlier in the report) 

Provider B submitted on budget but had excluded key elements including all utilities 

(water; gas & electric) which currently cost circa £20k per year for both properties.  

This would mean that neither provider would be able to come in on budget.    

Therefore the request will be to work with the existing provider for up to a further 12 
months at a cost of £546,950.80. The incumbent provider would therefore require an 
increase of £43,369.80 some of this additional cost can be offset by the rent 

reduction. 

 

For LOT 1 – 4 These contracts will be awarded for 5 years with the option to extend 

for 1 year and further extension for 1 year totalling a maximum of 7 years.  

The request to agree and approve an extension will be via the Procurement Board 

governance process given the size of the contract. Throughout the lifetime of the 
contract there will be quarterly monitoring meetings run by a lead Commissioning 
Manager to monitor the outcomes within the contract as well as the capacity and use 

of the provisions. This process will include stakeholder feedback as well as 
consultation with young people. This monitoring will be designed in conjunction with 

the providers based on the specification but will focus on; 
 

 Health and Wellbeing 

Page 40



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

The Young Person enjoys good physical, emotional, mental, and sexual health, has 
a healthy lifestyle and has access to information about health issues that allows 

them to make informed choices as they move towards independence 
 

 Staying Safe 
Young People are living in a physically safe environment with appropriate support 
network to meet their individual needs 

 

 Relationships 

Young People are supported in developing peer, family and working relationships to 
aid their development and promote emotional well-being 

 

 Promoting Identity 
The Young Person feels secure and proud of their identity and can choose his/her 

religion 
 

 Participation 
The young person has access to employment, training or education and receives 
encouragement and recognition for their achievements 

 

 Promoting Independence 

 The Young Person has developed independence and money management skills to 
successfully transition into independent adult life 

 
3. Social Value  

The provider’s ability to deliver Social Value outcomes was assessed as part of the 

TOMS Framework process; all potential bidders had demonstrated a satisfactory 
capacity to deliver Social Value outcomes. 

Bidders were asked a series of questions that covered social, economic, and 
environmental factors which would deliver social value outcomes during delivery of 
accommodation and support.  

 
Adullam (Lot 1)  

 Two thirds of the current staff are from the local area of Salford  

 Staff will be recruited from the local area with targeted local recruitment 

schemes  

 Local services are used for the general upkeep of the accommodation 

including window cleaners; gardener and cleaner to ensure the local supply 

chain is utilised  

 Recent recruitment has seen a member of staff with a protected characteristic 

for disabilities recruited  

 Staff participate in a company wellbeing programme which provides access to 

tools and service that support their physical/emotional health and engagement 

Page 41



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

with wellbeing. Tools help staff track their wellbeing & resilience and where to 

access support 

 Computer equipment will be recycled and donated to local charities  

 The provider takes student work based placements for undergraduates from 

local universities (Salford) studying social care and social or economic 

sciences  

 Training specifically targeted to ethnic profile of Salford sub-locality and 

UACAS referrals to ensure understanding of client and community local need 

 There will be a scheme over and above the contract for young people aged 16 

- 24 focusing on vocational skills, confidence building and qualifications or 

certification for employment 

 £60,000 investment from the provider for property improvements where local 

tradesmen will be sourced (on award of the contract)  

Places for People Living Plus (Lot 2,3,4) 

 Half of the current staff are from the local area  

 Staff will be recruited from the local area with targeted local recruitment 

schemes when required  

 Local services are used for the general upkeep of the accommodation 

including security and cleaning  

 This provider currently has 2 apprentices and have committed to take on more 

throughout the duration of the contract  

 The provider has committed to engaging with local universities (UCLAN & 

Salford Uni) for Social Work placement opportunities providing experience 

opportunities, career development and mentoring.  

 Staff each have 1 volunteering day per year with a service that will be sourced 

via Salford CVS  

 Dedicated hours will be given to give homelessness awareness sessions in 

schools and colleges  

 This provider has a Community Investment Fund which will be distributed to 

local charities with the residents  

 All young people receive move on packages at a cost of £400 over and above 

the contract to ensure young people do not start off in any hardship in their 

own tenancy  

 All incumbent young people have access to the providers ‘Places Impact 

Hardship fund’  

Page 42



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

 The provider willspend £3,000 investment in IT equipment for young people to 

directly focus on employability programme  

 There will be the delivery of ‘Backyard Nature’ project with partner charity 

SEMBLE to co-design approaches to hyper-local biodiversity & green space 

usage with additional funding from Places for People for this project at around 

£5k over the course of the contract  

 Other Salford contracts in place over and above this one includes Pest 

Control and Waste department  

 The group has a cycle to work scheme and cycle loans 

 The group has procured renewable electricity for all its assets which captures 

Salford Foyer. The current emissions are Net Zero compared with standard 

grid electricity. Annually the saving is up to 16.9 tonnes CO2e compared 

against 2020 baseline year. 

 The building received a retrofit with a new heating system which annually 

saves up to 2.3 tonnes CO2e against 2014 levels.  

 

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  
 

Route 29 – Bond Programme  
Care Leavers  

Corporate Parents  
The Great Eight  
Tackling Poverty and Inequality 

Affordable housing and reducing homelessness 
Tackling Health inequality 

 

 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:  
 

The Equality Impact Assessment concluded that there needs to be closer monitoring 
of young people with disabilities and accessibility in the service and this was 
reflected in the specification.  

 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK:   

 
The risk of delaying the award for this contract is staff retention and stability. If there 
is a sense of uncertainty staff will start to look at other options and move on. It would 

then be difficult to recruit to these posts during this transition period which could 
result in the service being understaffed and a reduction in the quality of service 

young people are being offered.  
 

Page 43



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

Young people are also at risk of losing well established relationships with staff and 

this may mean they are unsettled in their environment. A delay in decision making 

could result in an unsettled service and environment for young people.  

 

 
SOURCE OF FUNDING:  

The Budget that will meet the cost of the scheme 

 Foyer Budget (core) 

 Liberty Budget (core) 

 Housing benefit  

 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by: The Shared Legal Service 10/11/21 

 

When commissioning contracts for the procurement of goods, services or the 
execution of works, the Council as a ‘contracting authority’ must comply with the 

provisions of the Public Contracts Regulations 2015 as well as its own Contractual 
Standing Orders (CSO’s), Financial Regulations and the duties of Best and Social 
Value. In addition, the Regulations require that contracting authorities treat candidates 

equally and in a non-discriminatory way and act in a transparent manner, failing which 
the award of a contract may be subject to legal challenge.  

 
The procurement procedure undertaken in this matter appears robust, and the 
appointment of the providers for the different lots associated with the services follows 

an open tender process which is outlined within the body of the report, and which is 
compliant with the requirements of CSO’s and public procurement legislation. 

Undertaking the open tender exercise in the recommendation will give some comfort 
to the Council in ensuring that value for money is being obtained and periodically 
tested, with open competition maintained.   

 
In view of the specialist nature of the services, the award of the contract will commit 
the Council to a five-year contract for each of the respective lots 1-4 with the providers, 

with the option to extend for two further periods of 12 months each.  
 

In respect of lot 5 referred to and the proposed extension to the existing arrangement, 
it is an established principle that a public contract is capable of being extended and 
CSO’s allow for contract extensions of this value to be made, but there is, however, 

always a risk that any extension or modification, if done outside of the usual tender 
process, could be subject to challenge by an aggrieved provider, on the basis that it 

ought to have been put out to tender and advertised in accordance with PCR. 
 

Page 44



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

The risk of challenge increases in tandem with the value and proposed length of the 
extension. However there are several reasons provided in the report to justify the 

Council commissioning the service such as a specialist provider, a sense of urgency 
and providing best value whilst the Council undertakes further work to review the 

financial position and go back out to the market to ensure providers have a fair and 
equal opportunity to bid in for that lot. 
  

 
Also the PCR also allow for modifications to be made to existing contracts such that a 

modification (here a variation) may be made where the following cumulative conditions 
are fulfilled:  
1 The need for modification has been brought about by circumstances which a diligent 

contracting authority could not foresee;  
2 The modification does not alter the overall nature of the contract;  

3 Any increase in price is not higher than 50% of the value of the original contract or 
framework agreement. (reg 72(1)(c)); 
Or in any event where the variation (irrespective of its value) is not considered 

substantial, which would be argued to be satisfied in these circumstances. 

 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Submitted by:  Chris Mee Strategic Finance Manager 
Ext 0434 

The proposed letting of contracts under lots 1 to 4 can be met from within the 
existing Children’s Services revenue budget for these services.  

The proposed one year extension of the contract under lot 5 at a cost of £547k will 
result in a budget pressure of £23k against the current available budget of £524k. 

Note all of these services are funded through the Children’s Integrated Fund and the 

above pressure on lot 5 will therefore fall on the fund.  

 

 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Christopher Conway, Procurement 
Category manager, tel. 0161 686 6248 

Procurement are happy to approve the recommendation to award the contract to 
Adullam Homes for lot 1 and Places for People Living Plus Ltd for lots 2, 3 and 4 for 

period 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2027 with an option to extend for up to a further 2 
years until the 31st March 2029 (as requested in the procurement board report). 

It is noted that both Providers have committed to sign up to Mayors Charter and will 

support the city council in working towards paying the Living Wage Foundation rate 
during the course of the contract period. 

Page 45



Sample B – aw ard of contract  

The TOMS’s Social value Outcomes identified during the tender process will be 
contractualised and managed jointly between Procurement, the lead Commissioner 

and Providers from the 1st April 2022 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS:  Supplied by: 
 
N/A  

 

 
CLIMATE CHANGE IMPLICATIONS:  Consultation: Michael Hemingway 10th 
November 21 
 

Providing 16+ provision in the city decreases the number of people needing to travel 
out of area for appointments which will cut down on carbon emissions.  

Providers have been able to evidence steps taken to ensure that CO2 emissions 
have reduced significantly since 2014 following upgrades in the electricity and boiler 
systems. Providers have cycle to work schemes which will again reduce the impact 

of CO2 emissions overall for those who use this.  
 

 
 

 
 
 

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED:  

List other parts of the organisation consulted with if applicable. Also identify if this is 
a joint report and if it is, also reflect this in the Heading.  

Report circulated to Jane Anderson Head of Housing Advice and Support 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: Jennifer Walsh 
TELEPHONE NUMBER: 0161 778 0533

 

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S):  
Specify the ward(s) affected, if all wards, state this fact. 

 
Seedley & Langworthy  
Broughton  

Eccles  
Claremont  

 

 

Page 46



PUBLIC INTEREST TEST – CHECKLIST 

Schedule 12A Local Government Act 1972 

 
Name of Report: ……Domestic Abuse Procurement Award ……………………… 

 
Committee: ………Procurement Board …………………… 
 

Date: ………8th December 2021…………………… 
 

Category of exemption applied (from list below): ………6…………………… 
 
 

1 Information relating to any individual 

2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of any individual 

3 Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the Authority holding that information) 

4 Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated 
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter 

arising between the Council, or a Government minister, and any employees 
of, or office holders under, the Council. 

5 Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 

be maintained in legal proceedings. 

6 Information which reveals that the Council proposes: 
 

a) give under any enactment a notice under or by virtue of which 
requirements are imposed on a person (including an organisation) or 
 

b) to make an order or direction under any enactment 

7 Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the 
prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 

 

Standards Committee Only 

7a Information which is subject to any obligation of confidentiality 

7b Information which relates in any way to matters concerning national security 

7c The deliberations of a standards committee or of sub-committee of a 
standards committee established under the Provisions of part III of the Local 

government Act 2000 in reaching any finding on any matter referred under 
the provisions of section 64(2) of 71(2) of the Local Government Act 2000 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 47

Agenda Item 8a



 
 

Public Interest Test Questionnaire 
 

This is not a definitive list. However, it does provide a series of questions that you 
should ask yourself when recommending confidentiality. 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT DISCLOSING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure help people to understand and participate in public 

debate about current issues? 
 

 

No 

Will disclosure help people to understand why the Council has taken 
certain decisions?  

 
 

Yes 
post 

decis
ion  

Will disclosure give the public information about the personal 
probity (or otherwise) of elected members or council staff? 

 
 

No  

Will disclosure encourage greater competition and better value for money 

for council taxpayers?  
 
 

No  

Will disclosure allow individuals and companies to understand 

decisions made by the Council that have affected their lives?  
 

 

Yes 

post 
discu

ssion  

Is the information about factors that affect public health and public 
safety? (NB you should be careful if considering the release of 

information which might adversely affect public health and safety)   
 
 

Yes  

Will disclosure reveal incompetent, illegal or unethical decision-

making or examples of malpractice? 
 

 

No  

Will disclosure reveal that such maladministration has not in fact 
occurred? 
 

 

No  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 48



 
 

FACTORS WHICH SUPPORT WITHHOLDING INFORMATION 
Will disclosure damage the Council’s interests without giving the 

public any useful information? 
 

 

No  

Will disclosure damage another organisation or person’s interests, 
without giving the public any useful information?  
 

 

Yes 

Will disclosure give an unfair, prejudicial or inaccurate view of a 
situation? 

 
 

No 

Will disclosure prevent the effective delivery of services without giving the 

public useful information?  
 
 

Yes 

Will disclosure put the health and safety of any group or individuals 

at risk?  
 

 

No  

Is there a clear and coherent reason why the community in general would 
benefit more from information being withheld?  
 

  

Yes  

 

 

 

Justification of decision 

(Please provide details of reasoning) 

 

 

The award of the Domestic Abuse contract requires sensitivity until a decision is 
made at Procurement Board due to a competitive tendering process.  

 

 

 

Other documents attached? …………………………… 

 
Name of Author: ………Debbie Blackburn …………………… 

 
Title: …Assistant Director Public Health Nursing and Wellbeing ………………………… 
 

Date: ……12/11/21 ……………………… 
 

Page 49



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting held on 24th November 2021
	5a Request for Permission to Participate in the GM Collaborative Contract for the Provision of Temporary Workers - Frank O'Sullivan
	5b Request for Approval - Exception to Contractual Standing Orders - Framework for Demolition and Associated Services - Jonathan Phillips / Tracy Squirrel
	5c Request for Approval - Oldfield Road Corridor Scheme - Anene Chiegboka
	05(c) - Appendix A - Scheme Overview Plan

	5d Request for Approval - Contract Award - Semi and Independent Living Services in Salford - Jennifer Walsh
	8a Request for Approval - Contract Award - Domestic Abuse - Debbie Blackburn / Madha Ayub

